

DEWE-30-16 / DEWE-30-32 TECHNICAL REFERENCE



.

Copyright © DEWETRON GmbH

This document contains information which is protected by copyright. All rights are reserved. Reproduction, adaptation, or translation without prior written permission is prohibited, except as allowed under the copyright laws.

All trademarks and registered trademarks are acknowledged to be the property of their owners.

Preface

Thank you!

Thank you very much for your investment in DEWETRON's unique data acquisition systems. These are top-quality instruments which are designed to provide you years of reliable service. This guide has been prepared to help you get the most from your investment, starting from the day you take it out of the box, and extending for years into the future.

This guide includes important startup notes, as well as safety notes and information about keeping your DEWETRON system in good working condition over time. However, this manual cannot and is not intended to replace adequate training.

This documentation contains operating as well as safety and care instructions that must be observed by the user. Faultless operation can only be guaranteed by observing these instructions.

Intended use

This product is used for measuring of different physical and/or electrical sizes (depending on model or configuration).

The connection depends on model or configuration and takes place via safety banana plugs, BNC connectors (± 50 V max.), D-SUB connectors (± 50 V max.), thermocouple connectors (± 50 V max.), BINDER[®] connectors (± 50 V max.), LEMO[®] connectors, SMB connectors¹ (± 50 V max.), µdot connectors¹ (± 50 V max.) or RJ-45 connectors¹).

Contents

Preface	3
Thank you!	3
Intended use	3
Safety	6
Safety instructions	6
General safety instructions	6
Electrical safety instructions	6
Ambient safety notices	7
Safety notices during operation	7
Standards and norms	8
Typographic conventions	8
Safety and warning notices	8
Notices	8
Symbols	8

General	information1	.0

Environmental considerations10		
Problematic network stacks10		
Warranty information10		
Legal information10	0	
Restricted rights legend10	0	
Legal disclaimer10	0	
Printing history11		

Main system12		
Key facts	12	
System specifications	12	
Dimensions*	13	
DEWE-30-32		
DEWE-30-16		

Connections and ports.....15

DEWE-30-32	15
DEWE-30-16	16
Power supply	16
Power supply input connector	16
Power-on switch	16
Power status LED	16
DAQP series module slots	17

Conditioned signal output (30-OUT-x-AMP)17			
RS-485 I/O (EPAD) connector1	7		
D-SUB-37 socket for connection to TRON- 1802/1600-dLV board17			
D-SUB-37 socket for connection to channels			
1732 from expansion unit18	8		
RS-232 interface connector (COM 1)18	8		
Ground connector18	8		
Nameplate18	8		
Options19	9		
Lantronix Ethernet connector 19	9		
30-OUT-DB37-5-AMP / 30-OUT-DB37-10-AMP 19	9		
Configuration examples19			
DEWE-30-16	9		
DEWE-30-32	0		

Working with the system......22

Software	22
Using DAQP modules with OXYGEN	22
Starting OXYGEN	24
Connect and set up signals and sensors	24
Changing channel settings	25
Design the measurement screen	25
Record	26
Open datafile and export	27
Setup of Lantronix Ethernet connector	28
Connection to a TRION(3)-1802/1600-dLV-32 module	33
Connect multiple DEWE-30-xx systems to 3 rd party hardware	34

Maintenance and service35

Service interval	35
Cleaning the system	35
Cleaning the filter pad	35
System recovery	36
Updates	36
Windows and antivirus/security software	36
Software updates	36
Training	36
Calibration	37
Support	37

Service and repairs37

CE certificate of conformity......38

CE certificate of conformity DEWE-30-32	38
CE certificate of conformity DEWE-30-16	39



Safety instructions

The following section contains warning and safety instructions that must be observed by the user. Faultless operation can only be guaranteed if these instructions are observed.

General safety instructions

- Use this system under the terms of the specifications only to avoid any possible danger. If the unit is used in a manner not specified by the manufacturer the protection can be impaired.
- Maintenance is to be executed by qualified staff only.
- DO NOT use the system if equipment covers or shields are removed. If you assume the system is damaged, have it examined by authorized personnel only.
- Any other use than described above may damage your system and is attended with dangers such as short-circuits, fire or electric shocks.
- The whole system must not be changed, rebuilt or opened (except for changing DAQ, DAQP or xPAD modules).
- Reinstall filler panels of unused DAQ, DAQP, PAD module slots to guarantee proper cooling of the installed modules. The warranty is void if the modules overheat due to missing filler panels.
- If you assume a more riskless use is not provided anymore, the system has to be rendered inoperative and should be protected against inadvertent operation. It is assumed that a more riskless operation is not possible anymore, if
 - the system is damaged obviously or causes strange noises.
 - the system does not work anymore.
 - the system has been exposed to long storage in adverse environmental.
 - the system has been exposed to heavy shipment strain.
- The warranty is void if damages caused by disregarding this manual. For consequential damages NO liability will be assumed.
- The warranty is void if damages to property or persons caused by improper use or disregarding the safety instructions.
- Unauthorized changing or rebuilding the system is prohibited due to safety and permission reasons (CE). Exception: changing DAQ, DAQP/PAD modules.
- > Prevent using metal bare wires as there is a risk of short-circuit and fire hazard.
- DO NOT use the system before, during or shortly after a thunderstorm (risk of lightning and high energy overvoltage). An advanced range of application under certain conditions is allowed with therefore designed products only. For details refer to the specifications.
- Make sure that your hands, shoes, clothes and as well as the floor, the system or measuring leads, integrated circuits etc. are dry.
- Use measurement leads or measurement accessories aligned to the specification of the system only. Fire hazard in case of overload.
- Do not disassemble the system. There is a high risk of getting a perilous electric shock. Capacitors still might charged, even the system has been removed from the power supply.
- The measuring systems are not designed for use at humans and animals.
- Contact a professional if you have doubts about the method of operation, safety or the connection of the system.
- ▶ Handle the product with care. Shocks, hits and dropping it even from an already lower level may damage your system.
- Also consider the detailed technical reference manual as well as the security advices of the connected systems.

Electrical safety instructions

• With this product, only use the power cable delivered or defined for the host country.

- DO NOT connect or disconnect sensors, probes or test leads, as these parts are connected to a voltage supply unit.
- The system is grounded via a protective conductor in the power supply cord. To avoid electric shocks, the protective conductor has to be connected with the ground of the power network. Before connecting the input or output connectors of the system, make sure that there is a proper grounding to guarantee potential free usage. For countries, in which there is no proper grounding, refer to your local legally safety regulations for safety use.
- DC systems: Every DC system has a grounding connected to the chassis (black safety banana plug).
- Note the characteristics and indicators on the system to avoid fire or electric shocks. Before connecting the system, carefully read and understand the corresponding specifications in the product manual.
- The inputs are not, unless otherwise noted (CATx identification), for connecting to the main circuits of category II, III and IV. The measurement category can be adjusted depending on module configuration.
- The power cord or the main power switch separates the system from the power supply. Do not block the power cord or main switch, since it has to be accessible for the users.
- Any direct voltage output is protected with a fuse against short-circuits and reverse-polarity, but is NOT galvanically isolated (except it is explicit marked on the system).
- Supply overvoltage category is II.
- The system must be connected and operated to an earthed wall socket at the AC mains power supply only (except for DC systems).
- DO NOT touch any exposed connectors or components if they are live wired. The use of metal bare wires is not allowed. There is a risk of short-circuits and fire hazard.
- The assembly of the system is equivalent to protection class I. For power supply, only the correct power socket of the public power supply must be used, except the system is DC powered.
- Be careful with voltages >25 VAC or >35 VDC. These voltages are already high enough in order to get a perilous electric shock by touching the wiring.
- Unless otherwise stated, the maximum input voltage for measuring cards is 70 V_{DC} and 46.7 V_{PEAK}
- The electrical installations and equipments in industrial facilities must be observed by the security regulations and insurance institutions.

Ambient safety notices

- This product is intended for use in industrial locations. As a result, this product may cause interference if used in residential areas. Such use must be avoided unless the user takes special measures to reduce electromagnetic emissions to prevent interferences to the reception of radio and television broadcasts.
- Do not switch on the system after transporting it from a cold into a warm room and vice versa. The thereby created condensation may damage your system. Acclimatise the system unpowered to room temperature.
- Any use in wet rooms, outdoors or in adverse environmental condition is not allowed. Adverse environmental conditions are:
 - Moisture or high humidity
 - Dust, flammable gases, fumes or dissolver
 - Thunderstorm or thunderstorm conditions (except assembly PNA)
 - Electrostatic fields etc.
- DO NOT use the system in rooms with flammable gases, fumes or dust or in adverse environmental conditions.
- Direct exposure of any DEWETRON product to strong sunlight or other heat radiation shall be prevented, as this could excessively heat up the product and lead to permanent damage of the product.
- The use of the measuring system in schools and other training facilities must be observed by skilled personnel.

Safety notices during operation

- During the use of the system, it might be possible to access another parts of a more comprehensive system. Read and follow the safety instructions provided in the manuals of all other components regarding warning and security advices for using the system.
- The product heats during operation. Make sure there is adequate ventilation. Ventilation slots must not covered. Only fuses of the specified type and nominal current may be used. The use of patched fuses is prohibited.

Standards and norms

This product has left the factory in safety-related flawless and proper condition. In order to maintain this condition and guarantee safety use, the user has to consider the security advices and warnings in this manual.

EN 61326-3-1:2008

IEC 61326-1 applies to this part of IEC 61326 but is limited to systems and equipment for industrial applications intended to perform safety functions as defined in IEC 61508 with SIL 1-3.

The electromagnetic environments encompassed by this product family standard are industrial, both indoor and outdoor, as described for industrial locations in IEC 61000-6-2 or defined in 3.7 of IEC 61326-1.

Equipment and systems intended for use in other electromagnetic environments, for example, in the process industry or in environments with potentially explosive atmospheres, are excluded from the scope of this product family standard, IEC 61326-3-1.

Devices and systems according to IEC 61508 or IEC 61511 which are considered as "operationally welltried", are excluded from the scope of IEC 61326-3-1.

Fire-alarm and safety-alarm systems, intended for protection of buildings, are excluded from the scope of IEC 61326-3-1.

Typographic conventions

Safety and warning notices

WARNING

Indicates a hazardous situation that, if not avoided, could result in death or serious injury.

CAUTION

Indicates a hazardous situation that, if not avoided, could result in minor or moderate injury.

Notices

NOTICE

This text indicates situations or operation errors which could result in property damage or data loss.

INFORMATION

This text indicates important information or operating instructions. Not observing these instructions could inhibit or impede you from successfully completing the tasks described in this documentation.

Symbols



Denotes a warning that alerts you to take precautions to avoid injury. When this symbol is shown on the product, refer to the technical reference manual (ISO 7000-4034; 2004-01).



Indicates hazardous voltages.

	Observe precautions for handling electrostatic sensitive devices.
\rightarrow	Indicates the chassis terminal (IEC 60417-5020; 2002-10).
	Direct current (IEC 60417-5031; 2002-10)
\sim	Alternate current (IEC 60417-5032; 2002-10)
$\overline{}$	Both direct and alternating current (IEC 60417-5033; 2002-10)
3~	Three-phase alternating current (IEC 60417-5032-1; 2002-10)
	Protective conductor terminal (IEC 60417-5019; 2006-08)
	Equipment protected throughout by double insulation or reinforced insulation (IEC 60417-5172; 2003-02)
	On (power) (IEC 60417-5007; 2002-10)
\bigcirc	Off (power) (IEC 60417-5008; 2002-10)

General information

Environmental considerations

The following information refers to the environmental impact of the product and the product end-of-life handling. Observe the following guidelines when recycling a DEWETRON system:

System and components recycling



The production of these components has required the extraction and use of natural resources. The substances contained in the system could be harmful to your health and to the environment if the system is improperly handled at its end of life. Recycle this product in an appropriate way to avoid an unnecessary pollution of the environment and to keep natural resources.

This symbol indicates that this system complies with the European Union's requirements according to Directive 2002/96/EC on Waste of Electrical and Electronic Equipment (WEEE). Further information about recycling can be found on the DEWETRON website (<u>www.dewetron.com</u>).

Restriction of hazardous substances

This product has been classified as Monitoring and Control equipment, and is outside the scope of the 2011/65/EU RoHS Directive. This product is known to contain lead.

Problematic network stacks

Often intrusive IT software or network processes can interfere with the primary function of the DEWETRON system: to record data. Therefore we recommend strongly against the installation of IT/MIS software and running their processes on any DEWETRON data acquisition system, and cannot guarantee the performance of our systems if they are so configured.

Warranty information

A copy of the specific warranty terms applicable to your DEWETRON product and replacement parts can be obtained from your local sales and service office.

Legal information

Restricted rights legend

Use Austrian law for duplication or disclosure.

DEWETRON GmbH Parkring 4 8074 Grambach Austria

TRION and OXYGEN are trademarks of DEWETRON GmbH.

Any other trademarks and registered trademarks are acknowledged to be the property of their owners.

Legal disclaimer

The information contained in this document is subject to change without notice.

DEWETRON GmbH (DEWETRON) shall not be liable for any errors contained in this document.

DEWETRON MAKES NO WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND WITH REGARD TO THIS DOCUMENT, WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED. DEWETRON SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. DEWETRON shall not be liable for any direct, indirect, special, incidental, or consequential damages, whether based on contract, tort, or any other legal theory, in connection with the furnishing of this document or the use of the information in this document.

Printing history

Refer to the page bottom for printing version.

Copyright © DEWETRON GmbH

This document contains information which is protected by copyright. All rights are reserved. Reproduction, adaptation, or translation without prior written permission is prohibited, except as allowed under the copyright laws.

▼ Main system

Key facts

- Rugged industrial design
- Signal conditioning with system isolation

System specifications

- 16 or 32 slots for DAQP modules
- Default slot for TRION-1802/1600-dLV board

DEWE-30 series			
Signal input		According to installed DAQP modules	
DEWE-30-32	Analog signal output	1x D-SUB-37 sockets	
	 Option 30-32-OUT-5 	 32 BNC sockets with up to ±5 V output 	
	 Option 30-32-OUT-10¹⁾ 	 32 BNC sockets with up to ±10 V output, limited bandwidth 300 kHz 	
	 Option 30-SPEC 	 Multipin output connector for any other A/D cards 	
	Analog output configuration	Single ended	
	Power supply	100 to 250 V _{AC} (breakdown voltage @ 2500 V); 45 W available for modules ²⁾ in slots 015 and 45 W available for modules ²⁾ in slots 1631	
	Analog signal output	1x D-SUB-37 sockets	
16	 Option 30-16-OUT-5 	 16 BNC sockets with up to ±5 V output 	
-30-	 Option 30-16-OUT-10 	- 16 BNC sockets with up to ±10 V output, limited bandwidth 300 kHz	
Ň	 Option 30-SPEC 	 Multipin output connector for any other A/D cards 	
ā	Analog output configuration	Single ended	
	Power supply	100 to 250 $V_{_{AC}}$ (breakdown voltage @ 2500 V); 45 W available for modules^2)	
Interfaces		RS-232 and RS-485	
		 For configuring DAQP modules 	
Weight		DEWE-30-16: Typ. 4.5 kg (9 lbs.), depending on configuration	
		DEWE-30-32: Typ. 7 kg (15 lbs), depending on configuration	
Dimensions (W x D x H)		DEWE-30-16: approx. 438.5 x 253 x 133 mm (17.3 x 10 x 5.2 in.)	
		DEWE-30-32: approx. 438.5 x 253 x 225 mm (17.3 x 10 x 8.9 in.)	
	 Option 30-16-MK 	– 19" 3U: 483 x 256 x 133 (19 x 10.1 x 5.2 in.)	
	 Option 30-32-MK 	- 19" 5U: 482 x 281 x 225 (19 x 11.1 x 8.9 in.)	
Environmental specifications			
Operating temperature		0 °C to 60 °C ³⁾	
Storage temperature		-20 to +70 °C	
Humidity (operating)		10 to 85 %, non condensing	
Humidity (storing)		5 to 95 %, rel. humidity	
Random vibration test; EN 60721-3-2; Class 2M2			
Free	quency range	10–200 Hz	
Spectral acceleration density		1 m/s²/ Hz from 10–200 Hz	
Duration		30 min./axis	

Tab. 1: System specifications DEWE-30 series

DEWE-30 series	
Shocktests; EN 60068-2-27	
Pulse form	Half-sine
Acceleration amplitude	15 g
Duration	11 ms
Direction	3 bumps each direction, 6 directions in total

Tab. 1: System specifications DEWE-30 series

1) Accuracy: ± 0.07 % of reading ± 0.6 mV (for ± 10 V output this equals: ± 0.07 % of reading ± 0.006 %).

INFORMATION Total accuracy DAQx modules and DEWE-30-x: v((Accuracy DAQx module)^2 + (Accuracy DEWE-30-x)^2)

2) Check the appropriate modules manual for power consumption of each installed module and calculate the total power consumption.

3) Derating 0.9 W/°C above 40 °C for AC power supply

Dimensions*







Fig. 1: Dimensions DEWE-30-32

DEWE-30-16







c

•



Fig. 2: Dimensions DEWE-30-16

*) Dimensions in mm (1 inch = 25.4 mm)

Connections and ports

INFORMATION

The location of the connectors might vary from system to system and depends on the actural configuration.

DEWE-30-32





Fig. 3: DEWE-30-32 connections and ports

DEWE-30-16





Fig. 4: DEWE-30-16 connections and ports

- 1. <u>Power status LED</u>
- 2. DAQP series module slots
- 3. <u>Conditioned signal output (30-OUT-x-AMP)</u> (optional)
- 4. <u>Nameplate</u>
- 5. RS-485 I/O (EPAD) connector
- 6. <u>RS-232 interface connector (COM 1)</u>
- 7. <u>D-SUB-37 socket for connection to TRION-1802/1600-dLV board</u>

Power supply

Power supply input connector

This connector supports standard 100 .. 250 $\rm V_{\rm _{AC}}$ power supply input for your system.

Power-on switch

The power-on switch has to be used to switch on the system.

Power status LED

The power status LED is located on the front side of the device and indicates if the device is switched on/off.

- 8. <u>D-SUB-37 socket for connection to channels 17 .. 32</u> <u>from expansion unit</u>
- 9. Inlet air
- **10.** <u>Ground connector</u>
- 11. Power supply input connector
- 12. Power-on switch
- 13. Ground switch
- 14. Lantronix Ethernet connector (optional)

DAQP series module slots

The device is equipped with 16 (DEWE-30-16) or 32 (DEWE-30-32) slots for DAQP series modules.

Conditioned signal output (30-OUT-x-AMP)

The conditioned signal output of each DAQP series module is also available on a BNC socket on the rear panel of the DEWE-30-xx as a ± 5 V or ± 10 V signal. This requires one of the following options:

- ▶ 30-OUT-5-AMP: 16 BNC connectors on back panel, ±5 V separately buffered output of conditioned signals
- ▶ 30-OUT-10-AMP: 16 BNC connectors on back panel, ±10 V separately buffered output of conditioned signals

RS-485 I/O (EPAD) connector

The RS-485 I/O interface connector (female) allows to connect DEWETRON EPAD modules to the system. All unassigned pins in *Fig. 5* are not connected. It is also possible to connect multiple DEWE-30-xx system with each other via the RS-485 I/O connector.



Fig. 5: Pin assignment RS-485 I/O interface connector (EPAD)

D-SUB-37 socket for connection to TRION-1802/1600-dLV board

This connector provides 16 channel balanced differential outputs. For further information see <u>Connection to a TRI-ON(3)-1802/1600-dLV-32 module on page 33</u>.



Fig. 6: Pin assignment D-SUB-37 connector for connection to TRION-1802/1600-dLV board

D-SUB-37 socket for connection to channels 17 .. 32 from expansion unit



Fig. 7: Pin assignment D-SUB-37 connector for connection to channels 17.. 32 from expansion unit

RS-232 interface connector (COM 1)

The RS-232 interface connector (female) is configured as standard RS-232 interface COM 1 and can be used for peripheral units. All unassigned pins in *Fig.* 8 are not connected.



Fig. 8: Pin assignment RS-232 interface connector (COM1)

Ground connector

For some kind of measurements, it is necessary to give the system an additional ground connection.

Nameplate

The nameplate is located on the backside of the device. It indicates the product name and serial number as well as information about the power properties and manufacturer.



Fig. 9: Nameplate

Options

Lantronix Ethernet connector

With the Lantronix Ethernet option the instrument is equipped with an additional LAN-to-RS-485 interface. The MAC address of the Lantronix module is located on a sticker on the DEWE-30-xx device.

For installation steps see chapter Setup of Lantronix Ethernet connector on page 28.

30-OUT-DB37-5-AMP / 30-OUT-DB37-10-AMP

Optionally, the DEWE-30-xx can be equipped with a D-SUB-37 connector on back panel for ± 5 V or ± 10 V, respectively, separately buffered output of conditioned signals.

Specifications	30-OUT-DB37-5-AMP	30-OUT-DB37-10-AMP		
Channels	1	6		
Input voltage	±5 V	±10 V		
Output voltage	±5 V	±10 V		
Filter	n.	a.		
Offset accuracy	typically ±200 μ'	V; max. ±600 μV		
Gain error	none	0.07 % of reading		
Slew rate	40 V/µs (at 1 l	xΩ//1nF load)		
Max. cable length / bandwidth				
– 100 m (10 nF capacitive load)	up to 5	00 kHz		
– 50 m	300 kHz b	andwidth		
– 100 m	100 kHz b	andwidth		
Protection	Short circuit protection for each chann other channels.	el; Shor did not effect the input or		

Tab. 2: Specifications 30-OUT-DB37-x-AMP

Configuration examples

DEWE-30-16

Standard DEWE-30-16 configuration





DEWE-30-16 with DEWE-30-OUT-5 option



Fig. 11: DEWE-30-16 with DEWE-30-OUT-5 option

DEWE-30-16 with DEWE-30-OUT-10 option



Fig. 12: DEWE-30-16 with DEWE-30-OUT-10 option

DEWE-30-32

Standard DEWE-30-32 configuration



Fig. 13: Standard DEWE-30-32 configuration

DEWE-30-32 with DEWE-30-OUT-5 option



Fig. 14: DEWE-30-32 with DEWE-30-OUT-5 option

DEWE-30-32 with DEWE-30-OUT-10 option



Fig. 15: DEWE-30-32 with DEWE-30-OUT-10 option

Working with the system

Further information on how to operate with OXYGEN find in the corresponding user manual available at: https://ccc.dewetron.com/pl/oxygen

For a more detailed explanation of the OXYGEN software refer to the OXYGEN Technical Reference Manual, which is available at <u>https://ccc.dewetron.com/pl/oxygen</u>.

Software

Using DAQP modules with OXYGEN

Connecting DAQP modules via a TRION-1802/1600-dLV board

1. Go to the DAQ Hardware setup in the System Settings and make sure that the DAQP Series and the TRION Series are enabled (see Fig. 67). Changes take effect on application restart.

\$	System Settings	DAQ Hardware
	Measurement Setup	
	Header Data	ADMA
3	Advanced Setup	ALTA_DT
0	Hardware	
۶	Sync Setup	DAQP
	DAQ Hardware	EPAD EPAD
	Amplifier / RS232 / RS485	GIGECAMERA
-	Sensors	ORIONDAQ
-	Extensions and Plugins	ORIONDSA
	Plugins Overview	OXTS
i	Remote Control	SIM
	User Interface	TRION
	UI Options	
	Localization	VECTOR

Fig. 16: Enabling DAQP and TRION hardware in the DAQ Hardware setup

- 2. Make sure that the driver for the TRION-hardware is installed. The installer is named DEWETRON-TRION-Applications-x64.exe and can be found in the folder \files\drivers\2_daqboards\dewetron\trion_driver\DEWETRON TRION Rx.x of the Install Media USB stick which is delivered with the measurement system.
- 3. If the driver was installed correctly, the DEWETRON Explorer will be available in the Windows start menu.

The DAQP are now connected to a TRION-1802/1600-dLV board.

Programming the modules addresses

System Settings	Amplifier / RS232 / RS485
Measurement Setup	
Header Data	СОМЗ
Advanced Setup	COM4
Hardware Sync Setup	DAQP / EPAD MODULES
DAQ Hardware	Min Address 0
Amplifier / RS232 / RS485	Max Address31
Sensors	PAD-DO7 Support
Extensions and Plugins	Scan for modules
Plugins Overview	Program modulo addresses
Remote Control	Program module addresses
User Interface	DAQP MODULES
UI Options	Output range _5V
Localization	EPAD POLLING SETTINGS
Security	Simultaneous timestamps
Advanced Graphics	

Fig. 17: Programming module addresses

- 1. Enable the Serial Port(s) on which the modules are connected (see (1) in Fig. 68).
- 2. Select the proper output range of the module in the Advanced Setup (see Advanced settings).
- **3.** Click on Program module addresses (see (2) in Fig. 68).
- **4.** Module programming UI

TRION: S	LOT2@Main System		~
Address:	0	+	
	Start programm	ing	

Fig. 18: Module programming UI

5. Select the proper Serial Port and click on Start programming (see Fig. 69). If the modules are connected to several serial ports, the Programming must be repeated for each serial port. The following window will appear:

TRION: SLOT2@Main System		
Address: 0	+	-
Stop programming	;	
Press ID Button on Module to prograv	n address	0 on
TRION: SLOT2@Main System		
TRION: SLOT2@Main System		

Fig. 19: Programming the module addresses

- 6. Keep the ID button of the DAQP module pressed until the address increases. Repeat that procedure for all DAQP modules.
- **7.** After finishing, press on *Stop programming* and close the window by pressing *Close & Scan* (see *Fig. 20*) or start the programming for another serial port.

TRION: S	SLOT2@Main System		~
Address:	8	+	-
	Start programming		

- Fig. 20: Finish the module programming
- 8. OXYGEN will now read the actual settings from the DAQP modules and write them to the channel settings in the software

INFORMATION

A click on Scan for modules will only scan for modules that have already been programmed and store the actual module settings

The modules will appear in the Channel List now and the settings can be edited.

-			TRIO	Net							DAQP	DAQP	DAQP	DAQP	DAQP	DAQP	DAQP	DAQP					
105	Main Sy	rstem	gene a								Ę	Ę	Ę	Ę	Ę	Ę	Ę	Ę					
:=				_							n Synt	in Syst	in Syst	in Syst	in Synt	in Syst	in Syst	in Syst					
						DIO			ANALOGIN	5 a	ST	ST	ST	ST	MU	MU	MU	MU					
0					2	• [•	•(······································	1862- AMA	A12/	AI 2/	A12/	A 2/	A 2/	AI 2/	A 2/	AI 2/					
					-		(O)	(IPS)	• • • • • • •	9Next	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7					
				10			0					~ _	-	-			-						
-	All	✓ Searce	:h	T _x						~													
	×	 Active 	Store	1 	Cha	innel	Color	Setup	Scaled Value		Mode		1	Samp	le Rate			Ra	nge	1	Scaling		•
1			TRION	et: Main	System																		liced
			TRION	TIMING	Main S	urtam	-		1 000000 47	16													Adva
<u>(</u>)				DI 1/20	Main System	TRON-THING		*	1.000000 A	1	Digital In			100	00 Hz			0	1				
				DI 1/20M	Main System	TRON-TIMING			1.000000 A	/6	Digital In			1000	JO Hz			0	1				
				DI 1/30M	Main System	TRION-TIMING		49	1.000000 A	/G	Digital In			100	JO HZ			0	1				
				DI 1/40M	@Main System	TRION-TIMING		**	1.000000 A	/G	Digital In			1000				0	1				
				DI 1/60	ein System @Main S	TRION-TIMING		*	1.000000 A	/G	Digital In			100	10 Hz			0	1				
				DI 1/804	ein System	TRION-TIMING			1.000000 A	/G	Digital In			100	n Hz			0	1				
				DI 1/701	@Main System	TRON-THING			1.000000 A	/G	Digital In			100	oo Hz			0					
		1	0	CNT 1	ain System /1@Main	System		۲	0.000000 A	/G	Events			100	00 Hz		-2.14	748365e.	748365e+0	9 Scale: 1		Unit:	
			TRION	1802 dL	V-16-D	TRON-TIMING	-		-2147483968 21474839	87										Office, 0			
			0	AI 2/1(@Main S	ystem		۲	-9.999998 A	/G	Voltage			100	00 Hz			-10 V	10 V	Scale: 1 Offset: 0		Unit: V	
				AI 2/20	@Main S	stem		۲	-9.99998 A	/G	Voltage			100	00 Hz			-10 V	10 V	Scale: 1 Offset: 0		Unit: V	
				AI 2/30	Main S	stem		۰	A 866666-	/G	Voltage			100	00 Hz			-10 V	10 V	Scale: 1 Offset: 0		Unit: V	
			0	AI 2/40	@Main System	stem		۰	-9.999998 A	/G	Voltage			100	00 Hz			-10 V	10 V	Scale: 1 Offset: 0		Unit: V	
			D	AI 2/50	Main System	stem		۲	-0.110300 A	/G	Voltage			1000	00 Hz			-5 V		Scale: 1 Offset: 0		Unit: V	
				AI 2/60	@Main System	stem		۲	0.002761 A	/G	Voltage			100	oo Hz			-5 V	5 V	Scale: 1 Offset: 0		Unit: V	
				AI 2/70	@Main System	stem		۲	-0.014463 A	/G	Voltage			100	oo Hz			-5 V	5 V	Scale: 1 Offset: 0		Unit: V	
				AI 2/8(@Main System	stem DAQP-MULTI		۲	0.073655 A	/G	Voltage			100	00 Hz			-5 V	5V	Scale: 1 Offset: 0		Unit: V	

Fig. 21: DAQP modules in the Channel List connected via TRION-1802-dLV¶

Starting OXYGEN

When starting OXYGEN, the measurement screen is displayed. OXYGEN will instantly start to acquire data but will not store it yet. *Fig. 22* shows an overview of the measurement screen and some important buttons and menu tabs.



- 2. Design mode
- 3. Record
- 4. Stop

- 6. Data channel list menu
- 7. Instruments menu
- 8. Export menu

Connect and set up signals and sensors

Open the Data Channel List by double clicking/tapping on the menu tab on the right side or by swiping it over the whole measurement screen, seen in *Fig. 23*.



Fig. 23: Expanding data channel list

Changing channel settings

The next step is to change the channel settings:

- 1. Click on the channel name in the list to enter a new name.
- 2. Alternatively, the channel settings will also open by clicking on the gear button (see Fig. 24).

There different settings are available

- Sensor scaling (unit and scaling or sensitivity factor)
- Table scaling for a non-linear scaling

All settings are automatically saved when entered and do not have to be saved separately.

🛆 * last	.dms - OX	VGEN					- B ×	
a 3° iii 4	Local?	kode			• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •			
*	7	Analog Digital	Counter CAN Search	AI 1/1	5N: 1234567890			٦
	ix <	>	Channel Color Setup	TRION-180	D-dLV-16-D-CAN		, 🔤 🗸 🛗 Choose sensor 🔧 👗	
-		V TRION-1802-dLV-	16-D-CAN	AMPLIFIER O	PTIONS	CURRENT SETTINGS	SENSOR SCALING	
1	_	Sine	•	Mode	Current		A H A Factor	
	- 11	Temperature	TRON-3802-62-35-0-CAN	Bange	100 mô.	Input type Differential	scaing type_scaing	
		Al 1/3 Sim	TRON-3302-62-35-0-CAN	10.68		Should Public Should 1 50 Ohm	Scaling Sensitivity	
	_ 11	Al 1/4 Sim	TRON-3802-62-35-0-CAN	Cr me				
		Al 1/5 Sim	TRON-3302-62-35-0-CAN		8 _d Bessel _d	Pmax/Imax 0.25 W A 70.71 mA A	Unit mA	
<u>۵</u>		Al 1/6 Sim	TRON-3802-80-35-0-CAN				Scaling 1 mA/mA	
		Al 1/7 Sim	1k0n-380-35-35-0-CAN =				Offset 0 mA Zero	
	_ 11	Al 1/8 Sim	1k0n-380-35-35-0-CM					
		Al 1/9 Sim	1k0n-380-35-35-0-CAN =	Į.				
	_ 11	Al 1/10 Sim	R0N-380-35-35-0-CAN					
		Al 1/11 Sim	•					
		Al 1/12 Sim	•					
		Al 1/13 Sim	T200-300-00-00-00					
		Al 1/14 Sim	T2011-000-00-040-040	ODENEW				
		Al 1/15 Sim	T2004-000-00-00-00-00	o T				
		Al 1/16 Sim	T2011-000-00-040-040	8			80.000 mA MAX 80.000 mA	
		DI 1/1 Sim	TRON-2802-464-36-0-CAN				ACRMS	
		DI 1/2 Sim	TRON-380-40/-3F0-CAN				ANG NOT	
		DI 1/3 Sim	TRON-380-40/-3F0-CAN				-0.000 mA	
		DI 1/4 Sim	TRON-380-40/3F0-CAN	1-			MIN -80.000 mA	
		DI 1/5 Sim	TRON-380-40-3F0-CAN					
		DI 1/6 Sim	TRON-380-40-3F0-CAN					
		DI 1/7 Sim	TRON-380-40-3F0-CAN					
		DI 1/8 Sim	TRON-380-40-3F0-CAN					
		DI 1/DO1 Sim	TRON-380-40-3F0-CAN	9 00			80.000 mA	
		DI 1/DO2 Sim	TRON-SKO-40-SHO-CAN					ſ

Fig. 24: Changing channel settings

Design the measurement screen

After the channel settings are done, design the measurement screen to your needs:

- 1. Double-click/tap on the menu tab or swipe the menu to the right.
- 2. Click or tap on the Instrument menu tab and drag and drop a recorder on the measurement screen.

More instruments can be added and adjusted like this, when being in Design Mode (see 2 in Fig. 22).

- **3.** Click on the *Data Channel* menu tab and add the signal by selecting the instrument and the signal to be shown or by drag and dropping the signal into the instrument.
- 4. Disable the Design Mode.

The design of the measurement screen is now finished.



Fig. 25: Designing the measurement screen



Fig. 26: Selecting instrument and signal

Record

To start the recording proceed as follows.

1. Click on the record button.

The red border and the REC indicator seen *Fig.* 27 in the lower left corner displays, that the recording is going on.

2. Click on the Stop button to stop the recording.

The recording process is now finished.

σ



Fig. 27: Recording

🛆 * last.dms - OXYGEN

Open datafile and export

To open a datafile, proceed as follows:

1. Click on the file button, and select the corresponding file (see *Fig. 28*).

The green border and PLAY indicator in the lower left corner indicate that a file is loaded for post-processing (see *Fig. 29*).

- 2. To export the data, click or tap on the *Export Settings* menu tab.
- **3.** Select the desired format and the channels to be exported.
- 4. Click on the export button seen in Fig. 29.

The exporting process is now finished.

	Open Data File Data File System > > V > V > V > V	Image:	560 3.0140 X	Def: 22 43 3 1025	
	Browse		Cancel	Open	
Analable disk space 277 S GR, estimated recording time 66 156 INF Reg 1227 43 107 (cc) INF Reg 2022 A 107 (cc) INF Reg 202 A 10	*	Open Data File			Œ

Fig. 28: Opening data file



Fig. 29: Exporting data file for post-processing

Setup of Lantronix Ethernet connector

To set up the Lantronix Ethernet connector, proceed as follows:

- 1. Install the "DeviceInstaller" and "CPR Manager". The files are usually located at E:\files\drivers\04_Communication\LANTRONIX_XPort
- 2. Connect the DEWE-30-xx via Ethernet to your PC and run the "DeviceInstaller". If you press the search button, you should see the the (XPort) device.

😢 Lantronix DeviceInstaller 4.3.0.2						- 0 X
File Edit View Device Tools Help						
🔎 Search 🤤 Exclude 🛛 🗞 Assign IP						
Lantronix Devices - 1 device(s)	Туре	Name	Group I	IP Address	Hardware Address	Status
E-gg LAN-Verbindung (192.168.10.101) B-C XPort	Sec. XPort-03/04			169.254.225.189	00-20-4A-D4-8F-DB	Unreachable

INFORMATION If the XPort module is red, you have an IP address problem (other subnet or network).

3. To configure the IP address, press "Assign IP" and fill in the MAC address of the DEWE-30-xx.



INFORMATION You will find the MAC address of the Lantronix module on a sticker on your DEWE-30-xx system.







The LANTRONIX XPort module is now connected to the PC.

- 4. For communicating with DEWETRON DAQP amplifiers some settings on the web interface of the XPort device are necessary:
 - Go to "Web Configuration"
 - Click on the Home button next to the address bar.
 - You will be asked for username and password. Leave them empty and click OK.

5. Set the port settings

습 letwork Server Serial Tunnel Hostlint	MAC Address: 00-20-4A-DF-A8-D1 Serial Settings
filetwork Server Serial Tunnel	Serial Settings
letwork Server Serial Tunnel	
Serial Tunnel	
	Channel 1
riusuist	Disable Chain On
hannel 1	Port Settings
Serial Jettings	Protocol: RS485 - 2 wire Flow Control: None
mail	Baud Rate: 9600 Data Bits: 8 Parity: None Ston Bits: 1
Trigger 1	
Trigger 2	Pack Control
I rigger 3	Enable Packing
ningurable Plits	Little One Time 10 means
ppiy setungs	Ide Gap Time: 12 msec
oply Defaults	Match 2 Byte Sequence: Yes INO Send Frame Immediate: Yes INO
	Match Bytes: 0x ¹⁰⁰ 0x ¹⁰⁰ Send Trailing Bytes: None
	Flush Mode
	Flush Input Burter Flush Output Burter
	With Active Connect: (1) Yes (2) No With Active Connect: (1) Yes (2) No
	With Passive Connect: O Yes O No With Passive Connect: Yes No
	At Time of Disconnect: O Yes O No At Time of Disconnect: O Yes O No

6. Set the connection settings

2 Lantronix DeviceInstaller 4.4.0.7		– a ×
File Edit View Device Jools Help		
🔎 Search 💿 Options 🤤 Exclude 🔍 Assign 🕫 🔮 Upgrade 🛛 🔮	Import Provisioning File 🔞 Generate Device File	
2: Latence Development 41.07 (Prime) = Control (Prime) = Control (Prime) (Prime) = Control (Prim) (Prime) = Control (Prim)	Projector Name State Alexanting Name	- a x
	Tand Con Mar (Condition V) Tand Con Mar (Condition V) Training V Hotel Montel Content Content Content Content Content V Has (Cite Content Content	
Fil faste		

7. Set the pin settings:

E Lantronix Devices - 1 dev	Device Details Web Config	jurat	tion T	elnet Configuration			
E-CAN-Verbindung (192	🗲 🄁 🛞 Address: 🕅	tp:/,	/192.16	i8.9.42/secure/lbc_conf.htm			- 🔁 👻 🔇 🐢 🖼
È-≪ XPort-03/04 - ∰ 192.168.5	LANTRO)		X°	Firmware MAC	01	
	企			Co	onfigurable	Pin Settings	
	Network Server						
	Serial Tunne?		СР	Function		Direction	Active Level
	Hostlist		0	General Purpose I/O	-	Input O Output	C Low O High
	Serial Settings	¢	1	RS485 Tx Enable	•	Input Output	🛇 Low 🖲 High
	Email		2	General Purpose I/O	•	🖲 Input 🔘 Output	🗇 Low 💿 High
	Trigger 1 Trigger 2 Trigger 3 Configurable Pins Apply Settings Apply Defaults			-		Ж	

If you make any changes:

- Click the "OK" button at the bottom.
- Click "Apply Settings" on the left.
- Close and reopen the Lantronix DeviceInstaller.
- Now your changes are displayed correctly.
- 8. To install a virtual COM port, open the CPR manager.

🕎 CPR Manage	er 4.3.0.1									
File Comp	ort Device	e Tools H	Help							
🏷 Add/Remov	e 🔒 Save	🖹 Refresh	Search For	Devices 🤤	Exclude					
Comports		- C-W	1							
	Com Ports	_								
📄 🗁 Com	✓ Com1	Com21	Com41	Com61	Com81	Com101	Com121			
- 🏷 🤇	✓ Com2	Com22	Com42	Com62	Com82	Com102	Com122			
	Com3	Com23	Com43	Com63	Com83	Com103	Com123	Closed		
····•	Com4	Com24	Com44	Com64	Com84	Com104	Com124	us: Disconnected		
	Com5	Com25	Com45	Com65	Com85	Com105	Com125			
	Com6	Com26	Com46	Com66	Com86	Com106	Com126			
	Com7	Com27	Com47	Com67	Com87	Com107	Com127	Connection Tim	eout (in seconds)	
	Com8	Com28	Com48	Com68	Com88	Com108	Com128	Reconnect 0 🖨	Reconnect Limit (0	= forever)
	Com9	Com29	Com49	Com69	Com89	Com109	Com129		2	
	Com10	Com30	Com50	Com70	Com90	Com110	Com130			
	Com11	Com31	Com51	Com71	Com91	Com111	Com131	TCP Port	Add To Fire	ewall
	Com12	Com32	Com52	Com72	Com92	Com112	Com132			
	Com13	Com33	Com53	Com73	Com93	Com113	Com133	eepAlive Interval (m	isec)	
	Com14	Com34	Com54	Com74	Com94	Com114	Com134			
	Com15	Com35	Com55	Com75	Com95	Com115	Com135			
	Com16	Com36	Com56	Com76	Com96	Com116	Com136			
4 U	Com17	Com37	Com57	Com77	Com97	Com117	Com137			
×	Com18	Com38	Com58	Com78	Com98	Com118	Com138			
Device List	Com19	Com39	Com59	Com79	Com99	Com119	Com139			Collapse
IP Address	Com20	Com40	Com60	Com80	Com100	Com120	Com140	etwork Interface	Device Name	Port
	•						+			
	ОК	Cano		heck (Range)	1 🔺 to	256 🛋				
	Select A	Select N	lone Un	check (Range)	1 🌩 to	o 256 🌲				
								-		
•										

- **9.** Add a new port, e.g. COM5.
- 10. Click on "Search for Devices".

				State and State		100 million (1990)					and the second se
File Com Port De	vice To	ols Help									
🏷 Add/Remove 🛛 📊 Sa	ve 🖹 Re	fresh 🤗	Search For Devic	es 🔵 Exclude							
Com Ports H	lide 🖨 🖇	Settings 🚬									
All Com Ports (3 Orn 1 - 5)	Com 5 (Mar	ked for Deletion)	Lastronix CPR Por	+ (COM	(5)					
Com 2 (Ir Com 5 (M	access larked 1	Viindow's Device Name: \Device\CprDevice5 Com Status: Closed Viindow's Service Name: CprDrvr Network Status: Disconnected									
		Reset	to Defaults	Cancel Edits							
		Buffe	rWrites (Keep c	hecked for better w	rite per	formance)	7	Connec	tion Time	out (in seconds)	
		Serve	er Reconnect				🔽 Timeo	ut Reconnect	0 🚖	Reconnect Limit (0 = fo	prever)
		🔲 No N	et Close								
		E Liste	n Mode	Normal - port clo	osed aft	er disconnect	Ŧ	TCP Port		Add To Firewa	
		TCP	KeepAlive	7200000 🖨 Ka	eepAliv	e Time (msec)	1000 🛓	KeepAlive In	erval (ms	ec)	
		RFC (Truf	2217 DTR (In) Port)	Tie DTR to DC	D, DSR	always active	Ŧ				
< III	•										
Device List											Collapse 🛃
IP Address	# Ports	TCP Port	Product		ID	HW Address		Network Interf	ace	Device Name	Port Na
	1	10001	XPort-03/04		X5	00:20:4A:D4:8	F:DB	192.168.10.10)1		

	ve sine	iresn 🎤	Search For Devices	- Exclude					
m Ports 6 → All Com Ports (5 → Com 1 - 5 → Com 1 - 5 → Com 1 - 6 → Com 1 (h → Com 2 (h → Com 5 (h	lide 🤤 1	Com 5 (Mari Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's	ked for Deletion) Port Name: Las Device Name: Voe Service Name: Cpr 2217 DTR (in): 112 112 112 1132 168.10.102	Itronix CPR Port (CO vicelCprDevice5 rDrvr Tie DTR to DCD, DS	M5) P Port 201 D1 20	Com Status: Network Statu e WARNING! If the irrewail, then UDP watch the firew opening the come page in the firew opening the come the Yadd Re, Port 1: button caption resources	Closed Disconnected Host is on the oth ports 30/18, 422 difference of these UDP device servers re connect to a devit device servers re connect to a devit device servers re connect to a devit	er side of a router or a. 32 and 4323 may superintee tr Journay competitioners for an of exclusion spond on UDC Judd ce server, one possible is blocking this port. port to the Firewall. If of then the port has al	1 to be ouble 83. ₩ Press the ceady.
		6 7 8				been added and c Remove	Rx Port The Fi	rewall is turned OFF	Ţ
III Vice List	Þ	6 7 8	-			been added and c Remove	Rx Port The Fi	rewall is turned OFE	Collapse 🛂
wice List	+ Ports	6 7 8 TCP Port	Product	ID	HW Addr	een added and c Remove	work Interface	rewall is turned OFF	T Collapse

11. By double-clicking on the displayed device, the module in the list above becomes visible. The line appears in red until you press the "Save" button.

Add/Remove S S Com Ports S S Com Ports S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S	ave Re Hide D	fresh Settings Co Com 5 Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's Window's	Search For Devices Exc m 5 Tests Fort Name: Lantronix C Device Name: Device(Cpr Service Name: CprDrvr 2217 DTR (In): The DTR Port) Fort	PR Port (COM Device5 to DCD, DSR	5) Com S Networ always active	tatus: Closed k Status: Disconnected y if the Host is on the ot	her side of a router or a	
		1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	192.168.10.102		Also, some you are una cause is the been added	n UDP poets 30718, 43 e firewall's exclusion liss s com port if these UDP legacy device servers r bible to connect to a deva J firewall on this machine Port' button to add this ion reads. Remove Rs t I and can be removed b emove Rx Port The F	282 and 43283 may net 4. You may experience ports are not excluded espond on UDP port 43 rice server, one possible ne is blocking this port. 5 port to the Firewall. 5 ort to the Firewall. 5 ort then the port has a y pressing this button. irrewall is turned OFF	trouble trouble 283. If Press If the already
Device List								Collapse 🛂
IP Address	# Ports	TCP Port	Product	ID	HW Address	Network Interface	Device Name	Port Na
······ 🚰 192.168.10.102	1	10001	XPort-03/04	X5	00:20:4A:D4:8F:DB	192.168.10.101		
				m				

You can now find the Lantronix port in your Windows device manager listed as a COM port.

Datei Aktion Ansicht ?	
🔺 📲 EK-PC	
a 🐙 Anschlüsse (COM & LPT)	
Druckeranschluss (LPT1)	
- Kommunikationsanschluss (COM2)	
Lantronix CPR Port (COM5)	
Audio-, Video- und Gamecontroller	
Display Computer	

12. Adjust the Firewall settings for all 4 ports.

-	Windows Defender Firewall mit e	rweiterter Sicherheit														 a ×	
-	• • 2 0 2 0 10																
4	Windows Defender Firewall mit	Eingehende Regeln													Aktionen	 	1
	El Eingehende Regeln	Name	Gruppe	Profil	Aktiviert	Aktion	Außer Kraft setzen	Programm	Lokale Adresse	Remoteadresse	Protokoli	Lokaler Port	Remoteport	Autorisierte Be ^	Eingehende Regeln	-	1
	Verbindungssicherheitsregen	S Bonjour		Öffen	Ja .	Zulassen	Nein	Cr\Progra.	Beliebig	Beliebig	TOP	Beliebig	Beliebig	Beliebig	Meue Regel		
, s	E Überwachung	S Bonjour		Öffen	Ja	Zulassen	Nein	Cr\Progra	Beliebig	Beliebig	UOP	Beliebig	Beliebig	Beliebig	V Nach Profil filtern		
		O CPR Legacy Devices Rx Port (30713)		Alle	Ja	Zulassen	Nein	Beliebig	Beliebig	Beliebig	UDP	30718	Seliebig	Beliebig	SP Mark Chatra Chara		
		O CPR Legacy Devices Rx Pert (43282)		Alle	Ja .	Zulassen	Nein	Beliebig	Beliebig	Beliebig	UDP	43282	Beliebig	Beliebig	a Mach States (recen		
		CPR Legacy Devices Rx Port (43283)		Alle	Ja	Zulassen	Nein	Beliebig	Beliebig	Beliebig	UDP	43283	Beliebig	Beliebig	Wech Gruppe Filtern	,	
		CPR Legacy Devices Rx Port (43283)		Alle	Ja	Zulassen	Nein	Beliebig	Beliebig	Beliebig	UDP	43283	Beliebig	Beliebig	Ansicht	,	
		CprManager.exe		Alle	Ja .	Zulassen	Nein	CprManag	Beliebig	Beliebig	Alle	Beliebig	Beliebig	Beliebig	70. at at		
		CprManager.exe		Alle	Ja	Zulassen	Nein	CprManag_	Beliebig	Beliebig	Alle	Beliebig	8eliebig	Beliebig	Aktualsieren		

Algem	ein	Program	mme und Die	enste	Re	motecomputer
Protokolle u	ind Ports	Bereich	Erweitert	Lokale P	rinzipale	Remotebenutz
Protokol	le und Por	ts				
and a	Protokoli	typ:	UDP			\sim
	Protokoll	nummer:		17 🔹		
Lokaler		Port:	Bestim	mte Ports		\sim
			30718			
			Beispie	el: 80, 443,	5000-501	0
	Remotep	ort:	Alle Po	orts		\sim
			Beispie	el: 80, 443,	5000-501	0
	ICMP-Eir	nstellungen:			Anpas	sen

The Lantronix Ethernet connector has now been set up and is ready to use.



Connection to a TRION(3)-1802/1600-dLV-32 module

Fig. 30: Connection

A C15Axx cable is required for connecting 16 channels to a TRION3-1802-dLV module in single-ended configuration. Two C15Axx cables are necessary for 32 channels.



Fig. 31: Connection with C15Axx cable

Connect multiple DEWE-30-xx systems to 3rd party hardware

Several DEWE-30 instruments can be connected to a third-party data acquisition system. To do this, the first DEWE-30 must be connected to an RS-232 (COM) interface of the DAQ system. The DEWE-30 instruments can be connected to each other via the RS-485 interface. A D-SUB-15 cable is needed for this purpose.



Fig. 32: Example of a connection 3 DEWE-30-16 instruments to a 3rd-party DAQ system

NOTICE

Connect a maximum of 4 DEWE-30-xx systems together via one RS-485 bus. If more than 4 systems are connected, data transmission may be unstable. If you would like to connect more devices, contact DEWETRON for support.

Maintenance and service

The information in this section is designed for use by qualified service personal.

Service interval

Clean dust from the chassis exterior/interior and exchange filter foam based on the operating environment.

Actions	On demand	At least once a year	Every 5 years
Clean dust from chassis exterior/interior	Depending on environmen- tal conditions	x	-
Change chassis fan	Х	-	Х
Calibrate TRION modules	-	Х	-
Clean filters	Depending on environmen- tal conditions	x	-

Fig. 33: Service intervals

Cleaning the system

- Clean surface of the chassis with dry lint-free cloth.
- Use a dry velocity stream of air to clean the chassis interior.
 - Do not use harsh chemical cleaning agents.

NOTICE



Many components within the chassis are sensitive to static discharge damage. Always wear a ground wrist strap and service the unit only in static-free environment.

WARNING



Risk of injury

Disconnect all cables before servicing the unit.

Cleaning the filter pad

WARNING

Requirements

TORX T10 screw driver



Do not attempt to remove filter covering plate when in operation.

Power off the instrument and disconnect the device from the power supply first.

Any voltage over 50 V connected to the modules must also be terminated.

Procedure

- 1. Switch-off the instrument and disconnect any high-voltage sensors/connectors.
- 2. Loosen 2 screws of the fan cover plate at the right side of the system using a TORX T10 screwdriver.



- 3. Remove the covering plate and the filter pads.
- 4. Clean the filterpads with a dry velocity stream of air.
- 5. Reinsert the cleaned filter pads and gently tap them.
- 6. Remount the covering plate by tightening the 2 screws using a TORX T10 screwdriver.

NOTICE Do not switch on the instrument before the covering plate has not been fully reattached.

The filter pad cleaning procedure is now finished.

System recovery

For more information regarding a total recovery refer to the corresponding total recovery technical reference manual shipped with your DEWE3 system.

Updates

Windows and antivirus/security software

Before installing Windows software updates consult with DEWETRON for compatibility guidance. Also keep in mind that the use of any antivirus or other security software may slow down your system and may cause data loss.

Software updates

	ΝΟΤΙCΕ
	The system BIOS is protected by password. Any change in the BIOS may cause a system crash. When the system is booting, do not press ESC-button on keyboard. This may clear the BIOS settings and cause system faults.
	Any change in the file structure as deleting or adding files or directories might cause a system crash.
	Before installing software updates contact DEWETRON or your local distributor. Use only software packages which are released by DEWETRON. Further information is also available in the Internet (http://www.dewetron.com).
	After power off the system wait at least 10 seconds before switching the system on again. Otherwise the system may not boot correct. This prolongs also the life of all system components.
Training	

DEWETRON offers training at various offices around the world several times each year. DEWETRON headquarters in Austria have a very large and professional conference and seminar center, where training classes are conducted on a regular basis starting with sensors and signal conditioning, A/D technology and software operation.

Dewetron Inc. in the USA also has a dedicated training facility connected to its headquarters, located in Rhode Island.

For more information about training services visit https://www.dewetron.com/academy.

Calibration

Every instrument needs to be calibrated at regular intervals. The standard norm across nearly every industry is annual calibration. Before your DEWETRON data acquisition system is delivered, it is calibrated at our DEWETRON headquarter. Each of this system is delivered with a certificate of compliance with our published specifications. Detailed calibration reports from our calibration system are available for purchase with each order. We retain them for at least one year, so calibration reports can be purchased for up to one year after your system was delivered.

Support

DEWETRON has a team of people ready to assist you if you have any questions or any technical difficulties regarding the system. For any support contact your local distributor first or DEWETRON directly.

For Asia and Europe contact:

DEWETRON GmbH Parkring 4 8074 Grambach AUSTRIA

Tel.:	+43 316 3070
Fax:	+43 316 3070-90
E-Mail:	support@dewetron.com
Web:	http://www.dewetron.com

The telephone hotline is available Monday to Friday between 08:00 and 17:00 CET (GMT +1:00).

For the Americas contact: **DEWETRON Inc. (HQ USA)** 2850 South County Trail, Unit 1 East Greenwich, RI 02818 USA Tel.: +1 401 284 3750 Toll-free: +1 866 598 3393 +1 401 284 3750 Fax: Email: support@dewetron.com Web: http://www.dewetron.com The telephone hotline is available Monday to Friday between 08:00 and 16:30 EST

Service and repairs

We are very sorry that your DEWETRON system is not operating properly. Our team is here to ensure that your DEWE-TRON product is returned to peak performance as quickly as possible.

Help us to provide you with the best support by following the RMA policy.

Some problems can be solved remotely by our support team. To facilitate a quicker resolution to the problem and save unnecessary shipping costs, we ask you to first have your problem investigated by our technical support before sending your product. Contact details for our support can be found on our website. Describe the error accurately and with as much detail as possible. This helps expedite the repair process.

If a repair is necessary, complete our online <u>RMA form</u>. You will then receive an RMA (Return Material Authorization) number and detailed instructions that identify where to ship the damaged product.

Products arriving at our repair department without RMA require follow-up calls and investigation, which lead to a longer turnaround. Only the team of DEWETRON is allowed to perform any kinds of repairs to your system to assure a safe and proper operation in future.

INFORMATION

Only the team of DEWETRON is allowed to perform any kinds of repairs to your system to assure a safe and proper operation in future. For information regarding service and repairs contact your local distributor first or DEWETRON directly.

INFORMATION

Any spare parts (screws, backplanes, cables etc.) must be obtained from DEWETRON only.

Manufacturer

Name of product

Kind of product

Address

CE certificate of conformity

CE certificate of conformity DEWE-30-32



DEWETRON GmbH Parkring 4 8074 Grambach, Austria Tel.: +43 316 3070-0 Fax: +43 316 3070-90 Email: sales@dewetron.com http://www.dewetron.com

DEWE-30-32

Data acquisition instrument

The product meets the regulations of the following EC-directives:

73/23/EEC

Directive on the approximation of the laws of the Member States relating to electrical equipment designed for use within certain voltage limits amended by the directive 93/68/EEC

89/336/EEC

"Directive on the approximation of the laws of the Member States relating to electromagnetic compatibility amended by the directives 91/263/EEC, 92/31/EEC, 93/68/EEC and 93/97/EEC

The accordance is proved by the observance of the following standards:

L V	Safety	IEC/EN 61010-1:1992/93 IEC/EN 61010-2-031	IEC 61010-1:1992/300 V CATIII Pol. deg. 2 IEC 1010-2-031
Ĕ	Emissions	EN 61000-6-4	EN 55011 Class B
M C	Immunity	EN 61000-6-2	Group standard

Graz, April 28, 2010

Place / Date of the CE marking

Dipl.-Ing. Roland Jeutter / Managing director

CE certificate of conformity DEWE-30-16



Manufacturer	DEWETRON GmbH
Address	Parkring 4
	8074 Grambach, Austria
	Tel.: +43 316 3070-0
	Fax: +43 316 3070-90
	Email: sales@dewetron.con
	http://www.dewetron.com

Name of product

Kind of product

DEWE-30-16

Data acquisition instrument

The product meets the regulations of the following EC-directives:

73/23/EEC

Directive on the approximation of the laws of the Member States relating to electrical equipment designed for use within certain voltage limits amended by the directive 93/68/EEC

89/336/EEC

"Directive on the approximation of the laws of the Member States relating to electromagnetic compatibility amended by the directives 91/263/EEC, 92/31/EEC, 93/68/EEC and 93/97/EEC

The accordance is proved by the observance of the following standards:

L V	Safety	IEC/EN 61010-1:1992/93 IEC/EN 61010-2-031	IEC 61010-1:1992/300 V CATIII Pol. deg. 2 IEC 1010-2-031
Ĕ	Emissions	EN 61000-6-4	EN 55011 Class B
M C	Immunity	EN 61000-6-2	Group standard

Graz, October 14, 2008

Place / Date of the CE marking

Dipl.-Ing. Roland Jeutter / Managing director